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May 18, 2012 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

TO 
BID DOCUMENTS 

FOR 
WEST HIGH SERVICE PUMP STATION 

FOR THE 
CITY OF ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN 

 
The following changes, additions, and/or deletions shall be made to the Bid Documents for the 
West High Service Pump Station Project for the City of Ann Arbor, Michigan, Bid No. ITB – 
4221 on which bids were to be received, on or before, 10:00 A.M. Thursday, May 31, 2012. 
 
PROPOSALS SHALL NOW BE RECEIVED ON, OR BEFORE, 3:00 P.M., THURSDAY, 

MAY 31, 2012. 
 
The information contained herein shall take precedence over the original documents and all 
previous addenda, and is appended thereto.   
 
All Bidders shall acknowledge receipt and acceptance of this Addendum No. 2, including 
all attachments, by so indicating on page ITB-1 of the Invitation to Bid Form.  Bids 
submitted without acknowledgement of receipt of this addendum will be considered 
informal. 
 
Changes in the Bid Documents which are outlined below are referenced to a page or drawing in 
which they appear conspicuously.  The Bidder is to take note in its review of the documents and 
include these changes as they affect work or details in other areas not specifically referenced 
here.  Changes to the original text are bolded, underlined and italicized. 
 
 

GENERAL 
 

Attached at the end of the addendum is the sign-in sheet for the Site Walkthrough held on 
Thursday, May 17, 2012. 

 
 

DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS 
 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 15400 – PLUMBING AND DRAINAGE 
 

Add Paragraph 2.2.C, as follows: 
 
A. Compressed Air Piping 
 

1. Compressed air pipes shall be Schedule 40, black continuous weld steel pipe 
in accordance with ASTM A53 or ASTM A120. 

 
2. Fittings 2" and smaller to be 150 lb. black malleable iron, screwed ends, in 
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accordance with ASTM A197. Unions to be 300 lb., malleable iron, ground 
joint with brass seat. 

 
3. Provide and install shut-off valve on the main line and on the line to each 

outlet. Valve working pressure to be 150 psi, stainless steel ball and stem, 
steel lever-handle standard, blowout-proof stem, UL listed.  Similar to 
Jenkins Brass Ball Valve Figure 201SJ or approved equal. 

 
 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 03300 – CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 
 

Add Paragraph 3.9.C.2, as follows: 
 

2. Crack Repair – Any structural cracks in the concrete that manifest 
themselves shall be repaired by pressure injection methods. 

 
a. Pressure injection shall be performed per all manufacturer 

recommendations. 
 
b. Injection grout shall be Sikadur 31 and 35; overlay patching 

materials shall be SikaTop 123 Plus.  Equivalent products by Master 
Builders shall be acceptable. 

 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 13200 – SURGE TANK 
 

Add Paragraph 2.4, as follows: 
 

2.4 MANUFACTURERS / SUPPLIERS 
 

A. The surge tank and all related system components, including but not 
limited to the following: 5,000 gallon tank with fittings, air 
compressor, solenoid valves, air relief valve, safety relief valves, 
electrodes, sight glass assembly, pressure gauges, and control panel, 
shall be provided as a complete and operational transient mitigation 
system with single source responsibility.  Single source responsibility 
shall specifically include shop drawing submittal, furnishing, 
startup, testing, commissioning, functionality, and warranty of the 
surge tank system.   

 
B. The surge tank system shall be as supplied by Pulsco (represented by 

Dale Bentley, Peterson & Matz, 248-476-3204), or Approved Equal.   
 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 17010 – INSTRUMENTATION GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

Revise Paragraph 1.5.K.1, as follows: 
 

1. Existing SCADA Server located in the SCADA server cabinet in the main 
control room. (not in contract). 
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SPECIFICATION SECTION 17015 – I&C SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Revise Paragraph 1.1.A.2.d, as follows: 
 

d. DeviceNet, Fieldbus and Modbus wiring and communication equipment. 
 

Delete Paragraph 1.3.A.6: 
 

6. Provide setup and commission DeviceNet networks. Terminate both ends of 
each DeviceNet bus. 

 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 17330 – SPARE PARTS 
 

Revise Paragraph 2.2.A, as follows: 
 

A. Provide the following spare parts: 
 

No. Description Qty.
1. PLC Power Suppy 1756-PA75 CompactLogix 1 
2. PLC DeviceNet Module 1756-DNB CompactLogix 1 
3. PLC Ethernet Analog Out Module 1756-ENBT CompactLogix 1 
4. PLC Analog Input Module 1756-IA32 CompactLogix 1 
5. PLC Analog Input Module 1756-IA16 CompactLogix 1 
6. One Pressure Transducer 1 
7. One Float 1 

 
 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 17440 – CONTROL PANEL - PLC 
 

Revise Paragraph 2.9.I.1, as follows: 
 

1. Programmable Controller shall provide high reliability in industrial 
applications. The internal wiring of the controller is to be fixed, with the logic 
functions it must perform in a given application to be programmed into its 
memory.  The controller shall be supplied with the CPU, memory (program 
and data) input/output modules, DeviceNet scanners, Ethernet TCP/IP 
modules, power supply, and all power and interface cables necessary to 
function as a complete, reliable and operable system. 

 
Revise Paragraph 2.9.I.10, as follows: 
 

1. Programmable Controller shall have at least two DeviceNet Scanner Ethernet 
TCP/IP modules for connection to associated MCC. 

 
  



 

 
AAD-2 

Page 4 of 8 

SPECIFICATION SECTION 17701 – INSTRUMENT SPEC SHEETS 
 

Revise Magnetic Flow Meter Instrument Data Sheet per attachment. 
 
Revise Pressure Transmitter Instrument Data Sheet per attachment. 

 
 

DRAWINGS 
 
Revise Drawing C-104 to reflect an ADA compliant ramp on the south side of the pump station. 
 
Revise Drawing C-105 to reflect grade changes for the ADA compliant ramp. 
 
Revise Drawing P-102 to reflect the valve type change on the WHS discharge. 
 
Revise Drawing P-107 to reflect a change in the surge tank manhole dimensions. 
 
Revise Drawing E-120 to update conduit note. 
 
Revise Drawing E-122 to show the homeruns for electrical feeders to the sump pumps and surge 
tank control panel. 
 
Revise Drawing E-123 to show the location of power conduit P26. 
 
Revise Drawing E-607 to reflect the feeder breakers for the sump pumps, air compressor, and 
surge tank control panel.  Also updated the Power Conduit Schedule so P9 requires a total of 5 
conduits and P10 will require a total of 2 conduits.  Also updated to reflect additional conduit 
and conductors. 
 
Revise Drawing I-105 to add a second PLC for the monitoring of medium voltage service 
breakers. 
 

 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
Q: On Drawing M-104 the CW to BFP-1 is shown as 1-1/2” down, and on Drawing M-105 

the same CW is shown as 3/4” up.  What is correct diameter of this CW pipe? 
A. The CW pipe to BFP-1 shall be 1-1/2”. 
 
Q. On Drawing M-105 the FFD serving the Air Compressor is shown on Plan El. 978.25.  

Should this FFD be shown on Plan El. 963.0?   
A. The FFD serving the Air Compressor should be shown on Plan El. 963.0.  The air 

compressor drain shall be piped directly to the FFD with copper piping and secured 
to the floor.  The FFD shall tie into the 6-inch sanitary on the north end of the 
building shown on Plan El. 963.0. 
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Q. In Detail 2 on Drawing S-100 there is a note on the north side of the building stating 
“New 6” dia. perforated drain connect to storm drain.”  On what drawing is this 
connection shown and what is the proposed invert? 

A. The drain connects to the 2-foot diameter catch basin shown on Drawing C-107.  
The invert at the proposed catch basin shall be changed to 978.50’. 

 
Q. On Drawing A-600, what is the size of the window in Door Type “A”? 
A. Provide 6-inch clearance top and sides, and approximately 6-inch clearance above 

panic hardware. 
 
Q. Are there any MDOT permits required? 
A. There are no MDOT permits required on this project. 
 
Q. Domestic 30” x 24” flange 90° bends and 30" x 30” x 36" flange tees are not available.  

Can these be imported? 
A. Only the 30” x 24” flange 90° bends and the 30” x 30” x 36” flange tee can be 

imported.  Imported fittings must be manufactured by American Cast Iron Pipe 
Company, Clow, or Tyler Union. 

 
Q. On Drawing P-104, the suction header 30"x12" tees are drawn with 46" laying length.  

They are actually 36" face to face.  Should a spool piece be included? 
A. Contractors shall include a spool piece in their bid anywhere the drawn laying 

length does not meet the available fitting laying length. 
 
Q. On Drawing P-104, the discharge piping shows an 18" dia. x 2'9" flg x flg spool piece 

between the 18"x16" reducer and the check valve.  On Drawing P-103 this is shown as an 
18” x 4" flange tee.  Which drawing is correct? 

A. Contractor shall provide an 18” diameter spool piece as shown on Drawing P-104 
with a 1” tap per the pressure gauge detail on Drawing P-106. 

 
Q. Tyler/Union does not shop prime their fittings with Tnemec F.C. Typoxy Series 27 

primer.  Is Tnemec Series 66 shop primer acceptable? 
A. Yes, Tnemec Series 66 is an acceptable alternative shop primer on process piping. 
 
Q. In the surge tank detail on Drawing P-107, the tank tangent length is shown as 17’-6” and 

the diameter is shown as 7’-0”.  Specification Section 13200-Surge Tank indicates that 
the nominal tank capacity should be 5,000 gallons.  Is a tank with a 16’-0” tangent length, 
7’-0” diameter, and a capacity of 5,195 gallons acceptable? 

A. Tank diameter may not change.  Length may change so long as the volume 
requirements in the specifications are met. 

 
Q. Specification Section 13200, Paragraph 3.1.C. states “The Contractor and fabricator shall 

plan to have the tank delivered to the site in sections and welded together at the project 
site for installation at the location indicated in the drawings.”  Typically tanks of this type 
are built in a fabrication shop and delivered complete.  Is it necessary to weld the tank in 
the field? 

A. The Contractor, at his option, can either have the tank delivered complete and 
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installed before the placement of the floor slab above the tank, or can have the tank 
delivered in sections and assembled in place after the placement of the floor slab.  In 
either case, protection of the equipment is critical.  The means and methods used to 
provide a complete and working surge tank system at the location indicated in the 
plans is the responsibility of the Contractor.   

 
Q. The surge tank detail on Drawing P-107 requires three (3) tank supports.  Can the tank be 

installed with only two (2) supports? 
A. The three (3) saddle supports were designed to resist the buoyant forces resulting 

from a station flood (to elev. 990.0) with the tank empty.  Two (2) saddles are 
acceptable, provided that a new design and supporting calculations for the 
anchoring of the tank to the foundation slab are prepared and submitted by a 
Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Michigan. 

 
Q. The profiles on Drawings C-201, C-202 and C-203 show butterfly valves on the yard 

piping and the plan on Drawing C-106 show gate valves.  Which drawing is correct? 
A. Where conflict exists, all valve types shall be per Drawing C-106. 
 
Q. On Drawing I-122 the Conduit & Cable Schedule shows four vendor control panels for 

the Vertical Turbine Pumps with regard to the analog signals.  The same schedule, as 
well as the other Contract Drawings show two vendor control panels total for the four 
pumps.  Please address this discrepancy. 

A. There are only two vendor control panels for the four pumps.  Each vendor control 
panel will be for the vibration/temperature system monitoring.  Each individual 
panel can monitor two pumps/motors. 

 
Q. The vendor control panels for the vertical turbine pumps are not specified in 

Specification Section 11214.  Where are these vendor control panels specified?  
A. Please refer to Specification Sections 17325 and 17326 for the equipment related to 

the pump vibration and temperature monitoring systems. 
 
 
Q. Based on Drawing Nos. E-105 and E-603, with regards to Circuit P3, the cables for the 

feeder from SB-Gen to Red SB1 will be spliced to existing conductors in manhole PHH2.  
Please verify that this is correct. 

A. No splices will be allowed below grade.  The Contractor will pull back the existing 
generator feed for reconnection to the RSB1.  Please refer to Drawings E-103, E-106 
and E-123 for further details. 

 
Q. Drawing E-120, Note 26 identifies a 4” conduit with 12 strand multi-mode fiber going 

from the existing fiber termination point.  Is it correct to assume that this is Circuit P25 as 
shown on Drawing E-123? 

A. Yes. 
 
Q. Is the existing fire alarm system simplex? 
A. Yes. 
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Q. Specification Section 17010, Paragraph 1.5.K.1 indicates a server is to be provided; 
however, Drawing I-600 is not represented as such.  Please Clarify. 

A. The server is existing and is not part of this contact. 
 
Q. Specification Section 17010, Paragraph 1.5.K.6 indicates only one (1) main PLC panel is 

to be provided by the system integrator; however, on Drawing I-105 a switchgear 
monitoring PLC panel is shown for monitoring purposes  Furthermore, Specification 
Section 16245 does not indicate this panel is to be provided nor does it indicate that any 
communication protocol is required.  Please clarify the intent of this control panel and 
further indicate if this control panel should be added to Section 17010, Paragraph 1.5.K.6. 

A. A second PLC is required for the monitoring of medium voltage service breakers.  
Drawing I-105 is being updated in this addendum. 

 
Q. Specification Section 17330 includes a list of ControlLogix spare parts to be provided; 

however, Drawings I-700 thru I-708 represent a CompactLogix platform.  Please clarify 
if ControlLogix cards are indeed what are required. 

A. The spare parts will be for the Allen-Bradley Compact Logic controllers.  
Specification 17330 has been updated for spare part requirements as part of this 
addendum. 

 
Q. Specification Section 17440 describes at least two DeviceNet Scanner modules are 

required to communicate with the motor control center; however, Specification Section 
16483 and Drawings I-601 thru I-603 do not describe or represent DeviceNet 
communications are required.  Furthermore, it is mentioned in Specification Section 
17015, Paragraph 1.1.D.4.e as a device for the system integrator to provide power 
monitoring for the motor control centers.  Please clarify. 

A. The references to DeviceNet are in error and will be removed from the contract 
documents.  The power monitors will communicate via the Ethernet backbone 
system. 

 
Q. Process and Instrumentation Drawings do not show PI/PIT-101B; however, in 

Specification Section 17701 the instrument data sheets provided for Specification Section 
17322 indicate a “redundant” pressure transmitter & gauge is required for the West High 
Service Pump Station discharge header.  Please clarify if this will be added to the 
Drawings or if the unit is not required. 

A. PI/PIT-101B will be removed from the data sheets.   
 
Q. In Specification Section 17701 the instrument data sheets provided for Specification 

Section 17324 indicate that FIT/Fe-105 is for “EHPS Effluent” flow; however, with the 
drawings this tag ID corresponds to the WHPS effluent flow.  Please clarify. 

A. The Instrument Data sheet will be updated to reflect West High Service Pump 
Station effluent flow. 

 
Q. Speciation Section17720 describes acceptable process automation equipment as Allen-

Bradley ControlLogix for Control; however, the Drawings are represented as a 
CompactLogix platform.  Please clarify. 

A. All controls will be CompactLogix. 
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Q. On Drawing I-701, the I/O card description indicates a part number for an analog input 
module.  Please confirm if the part number should actually be 1769-OF4CI. 

A. The correct part number for analog card is 1769-OF4CI. 
 
Q. Specification Section 16700- Low Voltage Cabling is included in the Contract 

Documents; however, there are no drawings related to this section. 
A. Drawings E-123, E-124, E-153 and E-800 show the various requirements for the low 

voltage cabling.  Drawing E-607 has been updated as part of this addendum to 
reflect additional requirements to related to Section 16700. 

 
Q. On Drawing AD-100, the drawing note indicates that the two openings (32 x 32 and 92 x 

38) shall be primed and painted.  Is that correct? 
A. The two openings shall be wallpapered (vinyl) to match existing. 
 
Q. What is the size of the existing gas line downstream of the gas meter where the point of 

connection is being made? 
A. The size is 4-inch diameter. 
 
Q. On Drawing P-102 in the Valve Schedule, please clarify the comment in the Valve ID 

column. 
A. All valves and tags shall be provided by the Contractor.  Only the number scheme 

for identification shall be provided by the Owner/Engineer. 
 
 

END OF ADDENDUM 
 











INSTRUMENT DATA SHEET

MAGNETIC Client: City of Ann Arbor Project No. 2075117301
FLOW METER Instrument Spec. 17324

Location: West High Service Pump Station

Revision A

Tag Number FIT/FE 105 FIT/FE 151

Service EHPS WHSPS  DISCHARGE PLANT WATER

P&ID No. I-603 N/A

Line/Equipment

Line Size Line Spec 24 6

Fluid

Oper. Press Norm/Max (kPa)

Oper. Temp Norm/Max (°C)

Ambient Temperature (°C)

S.G .@ Oper. Temp.

Viscosity @ Oper. Temp.

Measurement Function

Tag No. FIT-105 FIT-151

Transmitter type Remote Remote

 Power Requirement 120 Vac 120 Vac

Electrical Connection

 Contact Type

Display Type LCD LCD

Instrument Range on Solid

Operating Range

Output Signal 4 - 20 mA 4 - 20 mA

Accuracy ±0.25 % of range ±0.25 % of range

Enclosure Rating NEMA 4X NEMA 4X

Enclosure Material

Mounting Wall Mount Wall Mount

Tag No. FE-105 FE-151

Sensor Type DC MAG DC MAG

Operating range 100 - 15,000 GPM 50 - 2,000 GPM

Measurement Range

Lining Material PFA PFA

Electrode material SS 316 Ti SS 316 Ti

Tube Size 100 mm 100 mm

Enclosure Material

Process Connection

Cable Length As Required As Required

Nameplate Yes Yes

Grounding Rings SS 316 Ti SS 316 Ti

Mounting Straps

Approval / Enclosure CSA NEMA 4X CSA NEMA 4X

Class / Division / Group General General

Manufacturer ABB ABB 

Model Number Magmaster Loflo Magmaster Loflo

Alternates E&H Promag 50W E&H Promag 50W

NOTES:

1. Vendor is to supply Stainless Steel Tag with Instrument Tags Number clearly Stamped on it.

2. Vendor is to fill missing data in this specification sheet relevant to the device (i.e. model #). 
3. Minimum straight pipe required: 5 dia. upstream of flowmeter and 3 dia. Downstream
4. Contractor is to supply mounting hardware appropriate for the application
No Date By Chkd Appd Revision
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Prepared by Stantec Consulting Ltd. 5/18/2012 FIT 01 (1)



INSTRUMENT DATA SHEET

PRESSURE TRANSMITTER Client: City of Ann Arbor Project No. 2075117301
Instrument Spec. 17322

Location: West High Service Pump Station

Revision A

Tag Number PIT/PE 101A PIT/PE 101B PIT/PE 105

Service INFLUENT HEADER INFLUENT HEADER EFFLUENT HEADER

P&ID No. I-601 I-601 I-603

Line/Equipment

Line Size(mm) Line Spec

Fluid POTABLE WATER POTABLE WATER POTABLE WATER

Oper. Press Norm/Max (PSI) 0 100 0 100 0 100

Oper. Temp Norm/Max (°F) 40 90 40 90 40 90

Ambient Temperature 32.0 110 32.0 110 32.0 110

S.G .@ Oper. Temp. N/A N/A N/A

Viscosity @ Oper. Temp. N/A N/A N/A

Measurement Function Pressure Pressure Pressure

Tag No. PIT-101A PIT-101B PIT-105

Transmitter type Loop Powered Loop Powered Loop Powered

 Power Requirement 24VDC 24VDC 24VDC

Electrical Connection

 Contact Type

Display Type Digital LCD integral display Digital LCD integral display Digital LCD integral display

Instrument Range on Solid

Operating Range 0 - 300 PSI 0 - 300 PSI 0 - 300 PSI

Output Signal 4 - 20 mA c/w Hart 4 - 20 mA c/w Hart 4 - 20 mA c/w Hart

Accuracy ±0.075% ±0.075% ±0.075% 

Enclosure Rating NEMA 4X NEMA 4X NEMA 4X

Enclosure Material Aluminum Alloy Aluminum Alloy Aluminum Alloy

Mounting

Element Type Integral Sensor Integral Sensor Integral Sensor

Material of Element SS SS SS

Enclosure Material AISI 316L SS AISI 316L SS AISI 316L SS

Measurement Range 0 - 300 PSI 0 - 300 PSI 0 - 300 PSI

Process Range 0 - 300 PSI 0 - 300 PSI 0 - 300 PSI

Process Connection 1/2 - 14 NPT male 1/2 - 14 NPT male 1/2 - 14 NPT male

Nameplate Yes Yes Yes

Connection Plug Yes Yes Yes

Mounting Bracket Yes Yes Yes

Isolation Valve and/or Manifold Isolation Valve Isolation Valve Isolation Valve

Approval / Enclosure CSA NEMA 4X CSA NEMA 4X CSA NEMA 4X

Class / Division / Group General General General

Manufacturer ABB ABB ABB

Model Number E&H E&H E&H

Alternates

NOTES:

1. Vendor is to supply Stainless Steel Tag with Instrument Tags Number clearly Stamped on it.

2. Vendor is to fill missing data in this specification sheet relevant to the device (i.e. model #). 
3. Contractor is to supply mounting hardware appropriate for the application.

No Date By Chkd Appd Revision
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Prepared by Stantec Consulting Ltd. 5/17/2012 PIT 02 (1)
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